
NOTICE OF PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND
COUNTY, TEXAS, WILL MEET IN REGULAR SESSION OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS FOLLOWS:

DATE:

TIME:

PLACE:

PURPOSE:

Call to order: Council Chamber

Wednesday, April 23, 2014

6:00 p.m.

Rosenberg City Hall
City Hall Council Chamber
2110 4th Street
Rosenberg, Texas 77471

Rosenberg Planning Commission Meeting

AGENDA

1. Consideration of and action on minutes of the Regular Planning Commission Meeting of March 26, 2014. (LeLaurin)

2. Consideration of and action on a Final Plat of Business Park Drive and Innovation Court Street Dedication, a
subdivision of 6.727 acres containing 3,462 L.F. of R.O.w. out of the S.B. Pentecost Survey, A-378, Fort Bend
County, Texas. (Tanner)

3. Consideration of and action on a Final Plat of Walsh Road Industrial Park, a subdivision of 24.259 acres of land
overall being a partial replat of Reserve "C" (call 14.2272 acres - Tract I; Fort Bend County Clerk's File No.
2013125509) and a partial replat of Reserve "0" (call 7.9822 acres - Tract II & call 2.0025 acres - Tract III; Fort Bend
County Clerk's File No. 2013125509) of Fifty-Nine South Industrial Park Subdivision (Volume 27, Page 11; Plat
Records of Fort Bend County, Texas) being in the Henry Scott Survey, Abstract No. 83, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend
County, Texas; 0 lots, 20 reserves, 3 blocks. (Tanner)

4. Review and discuss the City's multi-family regulations, renter-occupied housing statistics, and the Rental Inspection
Program, and take action as necessary to direct staff. (Tanner)

5. Review and discuss the City's Special Election regarding the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) "One
Way Pairs" Project, and take action as necessary to direct staff. (Tanner)

6. Consideration of and action on the Staff Report of Current Activities and Requests for Future Agenda Items. (Tanner)

7. Announcements.

8. Adjournment.

The Planning Commission reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of
this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above, as authorized by Texas Government Code, Section
551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).

[EXECUTION PAGE TO FOLLOW]

Page 1 of 2



Attest:
Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary

1..: lfli i2: m. by

Reasonable accommodation for the disabled attending this meeting will be available; persons with disabilities in
need of special assistance at the meeting should contact the City Secretary at (832) 595-3340.

Page 2 of 2



ITEM 1 
 

Minutes: 
 

1. Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes for March 26, 2014. 



 
Page 1 of 5 * DRAFT PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * MARCH 26, 2014 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
***DRAFT*** 

 
On this the 26th day of March 2014, the Planning Commission of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, 
met in a regular meeting at the Rosenberg City Hall Council Chamber, 2110 4th Street, Rosenberg, Texas 77471. 
 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT 
  Pete Pavlovsky    Planning Commission Chairperson 
  Lester Phipps, Jr.   Planning Commission Vice Chairperson 
  Wayne Poldrack   Planning Commission Secretary 
  Alicia Casias *arrived 6:02 p.m.  Planning Commissioner 
  Mike Parsons    Planning Commissioner 
  James Urbish    Planning Commissioner 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
  Cynthia McConathy   Councilor, At Large Position Two 
  Travis Tanner    Executive Director of Community Development 
  Charles Kalkomey, P.E.  City Engineer 
  Lora Lenzsch    City Attorney 
  Renée LeLaurin   Secretary II 
 
OTHERS PRESENT 
  Warren Escovy    LJA Engineering, Inc. (Bonbrook Plantation) 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chairperson Pavlovsky called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  
 

AGENDA 
 

1. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON MINUTES OF THE REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING OF 
FEBRUARY 26, 2014. 
 
Action Taken:  Commissioner Parsons moved, seconded by Commissioner Urbish, to approve the minutes 
of the February 26, 2014 Regular Planning Commission Meeting as written.  The motion carried by a 
unanimous vote of those present. 
   

2. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A FINAL PLAT OF BONBROOK PLANTATION NORTH SECTION TEN, A 
SUBDIVISION OF 12.205 ACRES OF LAND SITUATED IN THE WILEY MARTIN LEAGUE, ABSTRACT 56, FORT BEND 
COUNTY, TEXAS; 39 LOTS, 1 RESERVE (0.917 ACRE), 3 BLOCKS. 
 
Executive Summary:  The Final Plat of Bonbrook Plantation North Section Ten is located off of Blossom Terrace 
Lane in the northeast part of Bonbrook Plantation.  It is located in the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and in Fort 
Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 155 (MUD No. 155).  The Plat contains thirty-nine (39) residential lots and 
one (1) 0.917-acre landscape reserve. 
 
The proposed lot size for the subdivision is predominantly sixty-five foot (65’) lots in accordance with the 
approved Land Plan, although many lots are larger and a few (5) are slightly smaller due to being cul-de-sac 
lots that are less than fifty feet (50’) wide as measured at the front property line.  All lots are a minimum of 65’ at 
the front building line.  Overall, the lot layout is consistent with the Land Plan.  It is also consistent with the 
Preliminary Plat, which was approved by the Planning Commission on January 22, 2014. 
 
With the Final Plat being consistent with the approved Preliminary Plat and Land Plan, and not in conflict 
with any applicable regulations, staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend approval to 



 
Page 2 of 5 * DRAFT PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * MARCH 26, 2014 

 

City Council of the Final Plat of Bonbrook Plantation North Section Ten. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
• Commissioner Parsons inquired how many sections of Bonbrook Plantation are left to be platted. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that all preliminary plats for the Bonbrook North have been submitted and there 

should be 2-3 more final plats. 
 

Action Taken:  Commissioner Parsons moved, seconded by Commissioner Urbish, to approve the Final Plat 
of Bonbrook Plantation North Section Ten, a subdivision of 12.205 acres of land situated in the Wiley Martin 
League, Abstract 56, Fort Bend County, Texas; 39 lots, 1 reserve (0.917 acre), 3 blocks.  The motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

3. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A FINAL PLAT OF BONBROOK PLANTATION SOUTH SECTION FIVE, A 
SUBDIVISION OF 49.784 ACRES OF LAND SITUATED IN THE WILEY MARTIN LEAGUE, ABSTRACT 56, FORT BEND 
COUNTY, TEXAS; 115 LOTS, 7 RESERVES (18.984 ACRES), 2 BLOCKS. 
 
Executive Summary:  The Final Plat of Bonbrook Plantation South Section Five is a proposed subdivision located 
off of Reading Road in the southeast part of Bonbrook Plantation.  It is in the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and 
in Fort Bend County MUD No. 155.  The plat contains the portion of Reading Road that connects Bonbrook 
Plantation to Bridlewood Estates.  The latter is in accordance with the approved Land Plan for Bonbrook 
Plantation. 
 
The plat consists of 115 lots and seven (7) reserves including a detention reserve (“A”) containing over 14 acres.  
The plat consists of the following lots sizes: 

• 18 x 50’ lots 
• 62 x 55’ lots 
• 35 x 65’+ lots 

 
The proposed plat and lot layout reflects the approved Land Plan.  This is the final subdivision in Bonbrook 
Plantation South and one of the final subdivisions in Bonbrook Plantation overall. 
 
The Preliminary Plat of this subdivision was approved by the Planning Commission on January 22, 2014.  The 
Final Plat is consistent with the approved Preliminary Plat and not in conflict with any applicable 
regulations.  Staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend approval to City Council of the 
Final Plat of Bonbrook Plantation South Section Five. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
 
Action Taken:  Commissioner Parsons moved, seconded by Commissioner Casias, to approve the Final Plat 
of Bonbrook Plantation South Section Five, a subdivision of 49.784 acres of land situated in the Wiley Martin 
League, Abstract 56, Fort Bend County, Texas; 115 lots, 7 reserves (18.984 acres), 2 blocks.  The motion 
carried unanimously. 
 

4. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A FINAL PLAT OF WALNUT CREEK SECTION TEN, A SUBDIVISION OF 
9.689 ACRES CONTAINING 42 LOTS, 2 BLOCKS, 2 RESTRICTED RESERVES, OUT OF THE EUGENE WHEAT SURVEY, 
A-396, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS. 
 
Executive Summary:  The Final Plat of Walnut Creek Section Ten is located off of Ricefield Road and Candle 
Oaks Lane, directly adjacent to Walnut Creek Sections Six and Eight.  It is located in the City’s Extraterritorial 
Jurisdiction (ETJ) and in Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 152 (MUD No. 152).  The plat consists of 
9.689 acres, forty-two (42) single-family residential lots, and two (2) reserves consisting of 0.32 acres. 

The approved Land Plan for Walnut Creek identifies fifty-five-foot (55’) lot widths for this particular area of the 
development.  All of the proposed lots in the Plat are a minimum of 55’ as measured at the front building line.  
Twelve (12) of the lots in the proposed subdivision are sixty feet (60’) or greater in width, and five (5) lots are 



 
Page 3 of 5 * DRAFT PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * MARCH 26, 2014 

 

identified as fifty-foot (50’) lots due to their width at the right-of-way. 

According to the approved Land Plan, at build-out, Walnut Creek will contain a minimum of 50 percent sixty-
foot lots per the ordinance in effect at the time the development began.  All subdivisions platted so far have 
been in accordance with the approved Land Plan. 

The proposed Final Plat of Walnut Creek Section Ten is in compliance with the approved Land Plan for 
MUD No. 152, with applicable provisions of the “Subdivision” Ordinance, and with the Preliminary Plat, 
which was initially approved by the Planning Commission on March 27, 2013, and for which a six-month 
extension was granted on September 25, 2013.  Staff recommends that the Planning Commission 
recommend approval to City Council of the Final Plat of Walnut Creek Section Ten. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
• Commissioner Parsons inquired how many plats remain in Walnut Creek. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that he was not certain but could bring that information to the next meeting. 
 

Action Taken:  Commissioner Parsons moved, seconded by Vice Chairperson Phipps, to approve the Final 
Plat of Walnut Creek Section Ten, a subdivision of 9.689 acres containing 42 lots, 2 blocks, 2 restricted 
reserves, out of the Eugene Wheat Survey, A-396, Fort Bend County, Texas.  The motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

5. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A REVISED PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING SCHEDULE AND 
SUBMITTAL DEADLINES CALENDAR TO BE IMPLEMENTED BY JULY 2014. 
 
Executive Summary:  On January 21, 2014, the Planning Commission (Commission) brought forward a Resolution 
to City Council regarding the continuation of Wednesday meetings.  At that time, City Council opted to 
maintain the recent policy change on meetings and directed the Commission to create a new meeting 
calendar establishing new meeting dates and plat submittal deadlines.  The current calendar, as approved in 
October 2013, could be utilized through June 2014. 
 
Following discussion from the November 20th, December 18th and February 26th Planning Commission 
meetings, staff has prepared the attached revised meeting calendar and submittal deadlines, proposed 
to begin as early as April 2014 but no later than July 2014.  In order to accommodate staff availability, the 
first proposed calendar would keep the regular Commission meetings on the fourth Wednesday of each 
month, but would advance the meeting start time from 6:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m.  A second option would be 
to meet on the third Wednesday of each month at 4:00 p.m.  After further discussions following the 
February Planning Commission meeting, in addition to City staff, the third Wednesday would 
accommodate the schedules of both the City Engineer and City Attorney.  Staff recommends the 
Commission review and discuss the proposed revised calendar options for adoption or propose an 
alternate meeting date/time. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
• Chairperson Pavlovsky stated that he is glad to see the afternoon time. 

 
Action Taken:  Commissioner Casias moved, seconded by Commissioner Urbish, to approve and adopt a 
revised Planning Commission meeting schedule for the third Wednesday of each month with meetings to 
begin at 4:00 p.m. 
 
Additional Discussion: 

• Commissioner Poldrack inquired when the new schedule would begin. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that since the submittal deadlines are tied to the meeting date, the first meeting 

on the new schedule should be in May to allow time for any applicants to adjust their submittals. 
• Commissioner Poldrack stated that it was his understanding that this new schedule would not take 

effect until June or July.  
 
Action Taken:  Commissioner Casias amended the previous motion, seconded by Commissioner Urbish, by 



 
Page 4 of 5 * DRAFT PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * MARCH 26, 2014 

 

adding a commencement date of May 21, 2014, for the revised Planning Commission meeting schedule 
for the third Wednesday of each month at 4:00 p.m.  Upon voting, the motion carried unanimously. 
 

6. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON APPOINTMENT OF A PLANNING COMMISSION REPRESENTATIVE TO 
SERVE ON THE BUSINESS ASSISTANCE GRANT REVIEW COMMITTEE. 
 
Executive Summary:  At the Regular City Council Meeting on March 18, 2014, the City Council adopted revisions 
to the Business Assistance Grant Program (Program), formerly known as the Avenue H Business Assistance Grant 
Program.  The Program was expanded to include all businesses within the City Limits and also increased the 
reimbursement grant maximum from $2,500 to $10,000 for qualifying improvements. 
 
Another component of the Program is the establishment of the Business Assistance Grant Review Committee 
(Review Committee) to evaluate grant applications and select grant award recipients based on the Guidelines 
and Criteria, attached as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-1770.  The Review Committee is to be comprised of a 
representative from the City Council, Rosenberg Development Corporation, Rosenberg Image Committee, 
West Fort Bend Management District, and the Rosenberg Planning Commission.  The meetings are anticipated 
to be held on a monthly basis, depending on the applications received, and the meeting date and time will be 
determined once the Review Committee members have been selected. 
 
This Agenda item gives the Planning Commission an opportunity to review the Program and nominate a 
representative to serve on the Business Assistance Grant Review Committee. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
• Chairperson Pavlovsky stated that he feels this is a good program and wishes that more people 

would take advantage of it.  Has the meeting schedule been set for this group yet? 
• Mr. Tanner replied that he would need to check.  In the past, they met on an as-needed basis as 

there were so few applicants.   
• Commissioner James Urbish volunteered to serve on the Review Committee. 

 
Action Taken:  Commissioner Parsons moved, seconded by Commissioner Poldrack, to nominate 
Commissioner James Urbish to serve on the Business Assistance Grant Review Committee.  The motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Further Discussion: 

• Chairperson Pavlovsky stated that the Commission can look at electing an alternate member at a 
later date if needed. 

• Commissioner Parsons inquired what the award amount will be. 
• Mr. Tanner replied the award is a 50% reimbursement match up to $10,000. 
• Commissioner Urbish stated that the increased award will definitely bring some people in to 

participate.  It is hard to make any improvements for $2,500 but $10,000 is a different story. 
• Mr. Tanner agreed and stated that by increasing the award amount, other cities saw an increase 

in participation with their program.  The hope is that Rosenberg will do the same. 
 

7. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON THE STAFF REPORT OF CURRENT ACTIVITIES AND REQUESTS FOR FUTURE 
AGENDA ITEMS. 
 
Executive Summary:  The Staff Report of Current Activities consists of projects that staff is currently working on as 
well as other updates that are relevant to the Planning Commission.  This item also allows the Planning 
Commission the opportunity to request that items be placed on future agendas. 
 
At the meeting, staff will provide updates on the Comprehensive Plan update process and “Sign” 
Ordinance amendments, which are the main items the Planning Department is focused on at this time.  As 
discussed at the last Planning Commission meeting, a Professional Services/Engineering Project Review 
Committee (Committee) meeting was held on February 11, 2014, to discuss consultants’ qualifications for 
the Comprehensive Plan update.  The Committee unanimously recommended to City Council that Kendig 
Keast Collaborative be selected to complete the project.  A contract must be approved by City Council 
to move forward.  This is a budgeted project.  Staff has been coordinating with the consultant and expects 



 
Page 5 of 5 * DRAFT PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * MARCH 26, 2014 

 

the item to go to City Council in the April/May timeframe. 
 
Staff continues to work on completing the “Sign” Ordinance amendments that have been prioritized by 
City Council.  As previously discussed, on February 18, 2014, an Ordinance was presented to City Council 
regarding maximum freestanding sign heights and sizes for Avenues H and I and State Highway 36.  The 
Ordinance was tabled by City Council and will be reviewed at a future meeting. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
• Commissioner Parsons requested a future Agenda item for a staff report on how many actual 

homeowners we have in terms of population.  The County would be able to indicate how many 
have homestead exemptions. 

• Mr. Tanner replied that staff could bring that item.  We have fairly reliable census data on 
homeownership. 

• Commissioner Parsons replied that with the number of apartment complexes and the number of 
rental houses, we may be becoming a renter’s community.  Commercial is a huge part of the 
landowners, and the budget document describes 38% residential.  Is that 38% homeowners or does 
that mean that 38% of the people are renters? In comparison to other cities, that demographic is 
atrocious for a City poised to become a significant city in Fort Bend County.  Cities to the north of 
us are expanding exponentially and we need to know where we are and where we are going.  If 
need be, we need to continue to tighten up the apartment regulations to ensure we have high-
end apartments. 

• Mr. Tanner replied that the current parking ordinance is very strict and that pushes someone into 
planned developments where the City has more input on the design and more discretion on 
approval.  We are currently about 50/50 homeowners versus renters.   

• Commissioner Parsons replied that he feels this demographic is harmful to the prosperous growth 
for the City and it is part of the Planning Commission’s job to look into the future and present to 
Council ideas to better the community in the long run. 

• Additional discussion was held on apartment communities and future subdivision development in 
the City. 

• Commissioner Urbish stated that he spoke with someone who recently bought a home off of Band 
Road with the intention to rent it out.  With interest rates so low, there may not be a way to stop 
people from doing that – they see an opportunity. 

• Mr. Tanner stated that is something that can be looked at in the comprehensive plan update and 
the consultant may have a way to address it. 

• Additional lengthy discussion was held on current and future developments, the requirement to 
have water service in occupied residences, and the Rental Inspection Program. 

 
Action Taken: 

• The Commission reached a consensus for staff to bring a report on the number of renter-occupied 
versus owner-occupied housing. 

• The Commission reached a consensus to add a review of the City’s Rental Inspection Program 
Ordinance. 

• The Commission reached a consensus to add an item to review the “One-Way Pairs” Project. 
 

8. ANNOUNCEMENTS. 
Chairperson Pavlovsky stated the Knights of Columbus will be having a fish fry this weekend and the next 
weekend, there will be a car show. 
 

9. ADJOURNMENT. 
There being no further business, Chairperson Pavlovsky adjourned the Rosenberg Planning Commission 
Meeting at 7:01 p.m. 

 
 

__________________________ 
Renée LeLaurin 

Secretary II 



PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION 
 
April 23, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

2 Final Plat of Business Park Drive and Innovation Court Street Dedication 
 
MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on a Final Plat of Business Park Drive and Innovation Court Street Dedication, 
a subdivision of 6.727 acres containing 3,462 L.F. of R.O.W. out of the S.B. Pentecost Survey, A-378, Fort 
Bend County, Texas. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat of Business Park Drive and Innovation Court Street 
Dedication. 
 

MUD # City/ETJ ELECTION DISTRICT 
N/A City 4 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

1. Final Plat of Business Park Drive and Innovation Court Street Dedication  
2. Preliminary Plat of Business Park Drive and Park Court Street Dedication – 12-18-13 
3. Land Plan for Rosenberg Business Park – 06-26-13 
4. Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt – 12-18-13 
5. Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt – 06-26-13 

 
APPROVAL 

Submitted by:   

 
Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director of Community 
Development 

Reviewed by:   

      Executive Director of Community Development 

  X  City Engineer  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
This item consists of the Final Street Dedication Plat of Business Park Drive and Innovation Court.  The 
proposed street dedication is located in the Rosenberg Business Park and will connect to the southeast side of 
FM 2218 between the intersections of FM 2218, Bryan and Danziger Roads.  This is the right-of-way dedication 
that is needed for the Rosenberg Development Corporation (RDC) and City to construct the street and utilities 
per the approved Development Agreement. 
 
The proposed Plat contains 3,462 linear feet of right-of-way and 6.727 acres.  At its intersection with FM 2218, 
Business Park Drive’s right-of-way width is 100 feet.  It later tapers down to an 80-foot right-of-way width in 
accordance with the Agreement.  Innovation Court is a proposed 80-foot right-of-way cul-de-sac street. 
 
The streets are consistent with the Development Agreement and approved Land Plan for the Rosenberg 
Business Park.  The Land Plan was approved by the Planning Commission on June 26, 2013.  There may be 
additional rights-of-way dedicated depending on future users in the Business Park and their impact on the 
roadway system.  At this time, however, the Plat is in accordance with the Agreement, with the Land Plan, and 
with the Preliminary Plat, which was approved by the Planning Commission on June 26, 2013, and for which a 
six-month extension of approval was granted on December 18, 2013. 
 
There were no issues with the layout of the Preliminary Plat; however, the street names were subject to approval 
by the RDC before Final Plat approval.  The Preliminary Plat was submitted as containing Business Park Drive 
and Park Court.  Park Court was changed to Innovation Court per the recommendations of the RDC.  There 
being no remaining issues, staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend approval to City 
Council of the Final Plat of Business Park Drive and Innovation Court Street Dedication. 
 



   This is to certify that the City Planning Commission of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, has approved this plat and subdivision of BUSINESS
PARK DRIVE AND INNOVATION COURT STREET DEDICATION in conformance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of
the City of Rosenberg as shown hereon and authorized the recording of this plat this ________, day of _______________, 2014.

        By: __________________________ By: ___________________________
               Pete Pavlovsky, Chairperson Wayne Poldrack, Secretary

   This is to certify that the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, has approved this plat and subdivision of BUSINESS PARK DRIVE
AND INNOVATION COURT STREET DEDICATION in conformance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the City of
Rosenberg as shown hereon and authorized the recording of this plat this ________, day of _______________, 2014.

________________________________
Vincent M. Morales, Jr.  Mayor

________________________________
Linda Cernosek, Secretary

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF HARRIS

     We, ROSENBERG BUSINESS PARK, LTD., a Texas Limited Partnership, acting by and through WILLIAM G SMITH,JR.,
President and STEPHEN G. DARNALL, Vice President, of ROSENBERG BUSINESS PARK, GP LLC, a Texas Limited Liability
Company, its General Partner, owner hereinafter referred to as Owners of the 6.680 acre tract described in the above and
foregoing map of BUSINESS PARK DRIVE AND INNOVATION COURT STREET DEDICATION, do hereby make and establish said
subdivision and development plat of said property according to all lines, dedications, restrictions and notations on said maps
or plat and hereby dedicate to the use of the public forever, all streets (except those streets designated as private streets),
alleys, parks, water courses, drains, easements and public places shown thereon for the purposes and considerations therein
expressed; and do hereby bind ourselves, our heirs and assigns to warrant and forever defend the title to the land so
dedicated.

     FURTHER, We have dedicated and by these presents do dedicate to the use of the public for public utility purposes forever
unobstructed aerial easements.  The aerial easements shall extend horizontally an additional eleven feet, six inches (11'6")
for ten feet (10'0") perimeter ground easements or seven feet, six inches (7'6") for fourteen feet (14'0") perimeter ground
easements, or five feet, six inches (5'6") for sixteen feet (16'0") perimeter ground easements from a plane sixteen feet (16'0")
above ground level upward, located adjacent to and adjoining said public utility easements that are designated with aerial
easements (U.E. & A.E.) as indicated and depicted hereon, whereby the aerial easement totals twenty one feet, six inches
(21'6") in width.

     FURTHER, We have dedicated and by these presents do dedicate to the use of the public for public utility purposes forever
unobstructed aerial easements.  The aerial easements shall extend horizontally an additional ten feet (10'0") for ten feet
(10'0") back to back ground easements or eight feet (8'0") for fourteen feet (14'0") back to back ground easements or seven
feet (7'0") for sixteen feet (16'0") back-to-back ground easements, from a plane sixteen feet (16'0") above ground level
upward, located adjacent to both sides and adjoining said public utility easements that are designated with aerial easements
(U.E. & A.E.) as indicated and depicted hereon, whereby the aerial easement totals thirty feet (30'0") in width.

     FURTHER, We do hereby dedicate to the public a strip of land twenty (20) feet wide on each side of the center line of any
and all bayous, creeks, gullies, ravines, draws, and drainage ditches located in said subdivision, as easements for drainage
purposes. Fort Bend County or any other governmental agency shall have the right to enter upon said easement at any and all
times for the purpose of construction and maintenance of drainage facilities and structures.

     FURTHER, We do hereby covenant and agree that all of the property within the boundaries of this subdivision and adjacent
to any drainage easement, ditch, gully, creek, or natural drainage way shall hereby be restricted to keep such drainage ways
and easements clear of fences, buildings, excessive vegetation and other obstructions to the operations and maintenance of
the drainage facility and that such abutting property shall not be permitted to drain directly into this easement except by
means of an approved drainage structure.

     FURTHER, Owners do hereby certify that we are the owners of all property immediately adjacent to the boundaries of the
above and foregoing plat of BUSINESS PARK DRIVE AND INNOVATION STREET DEDICATION where building setback lines or
public utility easements are to be established outside the boundaries of the above and foregoing plat and do hereby make
and establish all building setback lines and dedicate to the use of the public forever all public utility easements shown in said
adjacent acreage.
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, ROSENBERG BUSINESS PARK GP, L.L.C., the general partner of ROSENBERG BUSINESS PARK, LTD., a

Texas Limited Partnership, has caused these presents to be signed by WILLIAM G. SMITH, JR., its President, thereunto

authorized, and attested by its Vice President, STEPHEN G. DARNALL, this ______ day of______________, 2014.

 ROSENBERG BUSINESS PARK, LTD.
 By: ROSENBERG BUSINESS PARK GP, LLC.

             its General Partner

By: _______________________________________
          WILLIAM G. SMITH, JR.
                          President

    Attest: _______________________________________
       STEPHEN G. DARNALL
       Vice President

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF HARRIS

   BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared WILLIAM G. SMITH, JR., President, and STEPHEN G.
DARNALL, Vice President,  of ROSENBERG BUSINESS PARK, GP, LLC., known to me to be the persons whose names are subscribed
to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that they executed the same for the purposes and considerations therein
expressed and in the capacity therein and herein set out, and as the act and deed of said Limited Partnership.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE, this _________ day of ________________, 2014

____________________________
Notary Public in and for the
State of Texas

My Commission Expires _______________________

NOTES

1. B.L. indicates a building line
A.E. indicates a aerial easement
U.E. indicates a utility easement
STM.S.E. indicates a storm sewer easement
W.L.E. indicates a water line easement
S.S.E. indicates a sanitary sewer easement
VOL., PG. indicates Volume, Page
F.B.C.P.R. indicates Fort Bend Public Records
O.P.R.F.B.C. indicates Official Public Records of Fort Bend County
D.R.F.B.C. indicates Deed Records of Fort Bend County
M.R.F.B.C. indicates Map Records of Fort Bend County

   Esm't. indicates Easement
H.L. & P. indicates Houston Lighting and Power
F.H.E. indicates a fire hydrant easement
D.E. indicates a drainage easement

   R.O.W. indicated right-of-way
P.L. indicates property line
    indicates found 3/4" iron rod
    indicates set 3/4" iron rod

2. The coordinates shown hereon are Texas South Central Zone no. 4204 State Plane Grid Coordinates (NAD83) and may be brought to surface by applying
the following combined scale 1.0001353390.

3. All non-perimeter easements on property lines are centered unless otherwise noted.

4. All bearings are based on the east right-of-way line of F.M. 2218, bearing N44°43'46"E.

5. This plat lies within Fort Bend County lighting ordinance zone No. LZ3.

The platted area is not located within the 100-year flood plain per Fema Flood Insurance Rate Map Panel 48157C0245L effective April 2, 2014. The nearest
base flood elevation is 85.70, NAVD 88.

6. All property to drain into the drainage easement only through an approved drainage structure.

7. The drainage system for this subdivision is designed in accordance with the "Fort Bend County Drainage Criteria Manual" which allows street ponding
with intense rainfall events.

8. All drainage easements are to be kept clear of fences, buildings, vegetation and other obstructions to the operation and maintenance by the drainage
facility.

9. To the best of the engineers knowledge, no existing pipelines or pipeline easements exist within the subdivision.

10. One-foot reserve dedicated to the public in fee as a buffer separation between the side or end of streets where such streets abut adjacent property, the
condition of this dedication being that when the adjacent property is subdivided or re-subdivided in a recorded subdivision plat, the one-foot reserve
shall thereupon become vested in the public for street right-of-way purposes and the fee title thereto shall revert to and revest in the dedicator, his heirs,
assigns or successors.

11. BENCHMARK: An NGS disk stamped M1219, 2.25 miles south from Rosenberg. 2.25 miles south along State Highway 36 from the First Baptist Church at
Rosenberg, 0.45 mile north of the junction of Band Road, in the top and 0.6' south of the north end of the east concrete headwall of a 5 channel culvert,
25 feet east of the center line of the highway, and about 1/2 foot higher than the highway.
NAVD 88 (1991 Adj.) Elevation = 94.48

PROJECT BENCHMARK: A Brass Disc will be set in concrete in the center line of Innovation Court at the center (radius point) of the cul-de-sac

12. This plat was prepared to meet City of Rosenberg and Fort Bend County requirements.

13. This plat lies wholly within Fort Bend Subsidence District, Fort Bend County Drainage District,
Lamar Consolidated I.S.D., and the City Limits of Rosenberg, and Fort Bend County.

14. Approval of this plat will expire one year from City Council approval if not recorded in the real property records of the county of Fort Bend.

15. Sidewalks shall be built or caused to be built through restrictive covenants within all road rights-of-way dedicated to the public.

16. This plat was prepared from information furnished by Abstract Services of Houston, GF No. TH12202072-H, effective date March 26, 2014. The surveyor
has not abstracted the above property.

17. Permanent project monument according to City Of Rosenberg guidelines to be set, with documentation provided to city.

18. This plat is subject to the terms, conditions and stipulations of the Development Agreement dated March 1, 2013, and executed by and between City of
Rosenberg, Texas and ROSENBERG BUSINESS PARK, LTD. and the ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION.

19. Elevations used for delineating contour lines are based upon NGS datum, NAVD-88, 1991 Adj.

20. Three-quarter inch (3/4") iron rods three feet (3') in length are set on all perimeter boundary corners, all angle points, all points of curvature and
tangency, and all block corners, unless otherwise noted.

   I, Douglas W. Turner, am authorized under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the profession of surveying and hereby
certify that the above subdivision is true and correct, was prepared from an actual survey of the property made under my
supervision on the ground and that all boundary corners, angles points of curvature and other points of reference have been
marked with iron (or other suitable permanent ferrous metal) pipes and a length of not less than three (3) feet.

                                           ____________________________________________________
                                           Douglas W. Turner, R.P.L.S.
                                           Registered Professional Land Surveyor
                                            Texas Registration No. 3988

FBC MUD 152

ROSENBERG
CITY LIMITS

CITY OF
ROSENBERG
ETJ

CITY  OF
THOMPSON ETJ

FBC MUD 144

FBC MUD 158

FBC MUD 144

FBC MUD 155

FBC MUD 159

FBC MUD 66

FBC MUD 150
(TO BE DISSOLVED)

PROJECT
LOCATION

   I, Dianne Wilson, County Clerk in and for Fort Bend County, hereby certify that the foregoing
instrument with its certificate of authentication was filed for recordation in my office on

______________________, 2014, at ___________ o'clock ____M. Filed in plat number(s)

___________________ of the plat records of Fort Bend County, Texas.

   Witness my hand and seal of office, at Richmond, Texas, the day and date last above written.

                                       ____________________________________
                                       Dianne Wilson, County Clerk
                                       Fort Bend County, Texas

                                       By: ________________________________
                                           Deputy

BUSINESS PARK DRIVE AND INNOVATION COURT
STREET DEDICATION

A SUBDIVISION OF

 6.727 ACRES
CONTAINING

3,462 L.F. OF R.O.W.
OUT OF THE

 S.B. PENTECOST SURVEY, A-378
FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS

OWNER: ROSENBERG BUSINESS PARK, LTD.

ENGINEER:

APRIL 9, 2014        IDS JOB NO. 1880-001-00   SHEET 1 OF 2

A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
1800 AUGUSTA, 4TH FLOOR - HOUSTON, TEXAS 77057 PH: 713-850-8400

CITY OF
ROSENBERG
ETJ



FBC MUD 152

ROSENBERG
CITY LIMITS

CITY OF
ROSENBERG
ETJ

CITY  OF
THOMPSON ETJ

FBC MUD 144

FBC MUD 158

FBC MUD 144

FBC MUD 155

FBC MUD 159

FBC MUD 66

PROJECT
LOCATION

BUSINESS PARK DRIVE AND INNOVATION COURT
STREET DEDICATION

A SUBDIVISION OF

 6.727 ACRES
CONTAINING

3,462 L.F. OF R.O.W.
OUT OF THE

 S.B. PENTECOST SURVEY, A-378
FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS

OWNER: ROSENBERG BUSINESS PARK, LTD.

ENGINEER:

APRIL 9, 2014        IDS JOB NO. 1880-001-00   SHEET 2 OF 2

A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
1800 AUGUSTA, 4TH FLOOR - HOUSTON, TEXAS 77057 PH: 713-850-8400

CITY OF
ROSENBERG
ETJ







reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION 
 
April 23, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

3 Final Plat of Walsh Road Industrial Park 
 
MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on a Final Plat of Walsh Road Industrial Park, a subdivision of 24.259 acres of 
land overall being a partial replat of Reserve “C” (call 14.2272 acres – Tract I; Fort Bend County Clerk’s 
File No. 2013125509) and a partial replat of Reserve “D” (call 7.9822 acres – Tract II & call 2.0025 acres – 
Tract III; Fort Bend County Clerk’s File No. 2013125509) of Fifty-Nine South Industrial Park Subdivision 
(Volume 27, Page 11; Plat Records of Fort Bend County, Texas) being in the Henry Scott Survey, Abstract 
No. 83, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas; 0 lots, 20 reserves, 3 blocks.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat of Walsh Road Industrial Park. 
 

MUD # City/ETJ ELECTION DISTRICT 
N/A City 2 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

1. Final Plat of Walsh Road Industrial Park 
2. Preliminary Plat of Walsh Road Industrial Park – 12-18-13 
3. Fifty-Nine South Industrial Park – 05-25-81 
4. Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt – 12-18-13 

 
APPROVAL 

Submitted by:   

 
Travis Tanner, AICP  
Executive Director of Community 
Development 

Reviewed by:   

      Executive Director of Community Development 

  X   City Engineer  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Preliminary Plat of Walsh Road Industrial Park is a proposed subdivision consisting of approximately 24.26 
acres and 20 reserves.  It is located immediately north of the intersection of Walsh and Klauke Roads.  The 
proposed reserves are an average of one (1) acre in size.  Also included are proposed Reserves “A” and “M” 
restricted to drainage use for detention purposes. 
 
From a development standpoint, the proposed deed restrictions for the subdivision generally limit the property to 
office, warehouse, distribution and light manufacturing use.  The restrictions also provide for the association to 
maintain common areas such as the detention pond.  The restrictions shall be recorded prior to filing of the Plat 
and Note No. 21 on the Plat will be completed.  It is also important to note that the West Fort Bend Management 
District (WFBMD) bisects the property being replatted and encompasses six (6) of the proposed reserves or 
building sites, and a portion of two (2) others.  The WFBMD’s standards will play a role in the future development 
of those sites. 
 
The proposed Plat also constitutes a partial replat of Fifty-Nine South Industrial Park, originally platted in 1981.  
That being said, a public hearing was held when the Preliminary Plat came before the Planning Commission on 
December 18, 2013.  The Preliminary Plat was approved by the Commission.  City staff has reviewed the 
proposed Final Plat and has found it not to be in conflict with any regulations.  Staff recommends that the 
Planning Commission recommend approval to City Council of the Final Plat of Walsh Road Industrial Park. 
 



“
”



CITY OF ROSENBERG
CITY LIMITS

(ORDINANCE No. 2011-29;
F.B.C.C.F. No. 2011118874)

CITY OF ROSENBERG
CITY LIMITS

(ORDINANCE No. 2011-30;
F.B.C.C.F. No. 2011118875)

FEM
A

 ZO
N

E X  SH
A

D
ED

FEM
A

 ZO
N

E X

FEM
A

 ZO
N

E A
E

FEMA ZONE AE

FEMA FLOODWAY AREAS

IN  ZONE AE







reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION 
 
April 23, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

4 Rental Inspection Program Discussion 
 
MOTION 
 

Review and discuss the City’s multi-family regulations, renter-occupied housing statistics, and the Rental 
Inspection Program, and take action as necessary to direct staff. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff has no recommendation for this item. 
 

MUD # City/ETJ ELECTION DISTRICT 
In-City MUDs City All 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

1. Code of Ordinances Excerpt – Chapter 6, Article VIII – Multi-Family Developments 
2. Code of Ordinances Excerpt – Chapter 6, Article XVI – Parking Lot Standards and Specifications 
3. Code of Ordinances Excerpt – Chapter 6, Article XIX – Rental Registration and Inspection 
4. Estimated Population in Single- and Multi-Family Residences – 2009-2013 

 
APPROVAL 

Submitted by:   

 
Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director of Community 
Development 

Reviewed by:   

      Executive Director of Community Development 

      City Engineer 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Planning Commission requested a discussion item on the Rental Inspection Program and multi-family 
development standards at the March 26, 2014, meeting.  For review, attached are Code excerpts from Chapter 6, 
Articles VIII – Multi-Family Developments, XVI – Parking Lot Standards and Specifications, and XIX – Rental 
Registration and Inspection.  It should be noted that Section 6-461 of Article XIX specifies that rental inspections will be 
made to determine compliance with applicable standards in the City’s building, housing, property maintenance, 
electrical, plumbing, health, and zoning codes.  The City recently adopted updated codes for several of these sections 
in late 2013 but these Ordinances have not yet been codified. 
 
Questions have recently been asked regarding the percentages of multi-family development and renter-occupied 
housing currently in the City.  Based on data compiled in-house, the City’s housing stock is approximately 28 percent 
(28%) multi-family.  Based on 2010 U.S. Census data, the City’s occupied housing stock is approximately 52 percent 
(52%) owner-occupied and 48 percent (48%) renter-occupied, whereas Fort Bend County overall is 79 percent (79%) 
owner-occupied versus 21 percent  (21%) renter-occupied.  The proportion of multi-family development has shrunk 
recently with the number of single-family residences being constructed, and perhaps due in part to City ordinances. 
 
To better demonstrate the latter trend, staff has provided information on single- and multi-family population over the 
previous five (5) years that was recently compiled for the Utilities Department.  The information is attached.  With the 
exception of one (1) new multi-family development in 2012, the population in multi-family dwellings has stayed the 
same while the population living in single-family residences has increased significantly.  The multi-family units that have 
been constructed, and are likely to be constructed in the future, are those in existing developments, such as Brazos 
Town Center and Fort Bend County MUD No. 144, that predate the City’s current multi-family parking requirement. 
 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission review the current regulations and direct staff to make any revisions 
deemed necessary.  A representative of the Fire Department, which oversees the rental program, will be present to 
answer questions.  Staff will return with any proposed amendments to be considered on a future Agenda for 
recommendation to City Council.  It is suggested that this discussion be included as part of the forthcoming 
Comprehensive Plan update. 
 



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 6 ‐ BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE VIII. MULTI‐FAMILY DEVELOPMENTS 

  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 1 

ARTICLE VIII. MULTI-FAMILY DEVELOPMENTS [11]  
Sec. 6-250. Applicability; definition. 

Sec. 6-251. Density and size, access and separation between multi-family dwelling buildings. 

Sec. 6-252. Masonry construction. 

Sec. 6-253. Screening. 

Sec. 6-254. Minimum off-street parking requirements. 

Sec. 6-255. Special protective requirements. 

Sec. 6-256. Open green space requirements. 

Sec. 6-257. Access. 

Sec. 6-258. Lighting. 

Sec. 6-259. Site plan. 

Sec. 6-260. Minimum square footage. 

Sec. 6-261. Penalty. 

Sec. 6-262. Exceptions. 

Secs. 6-263—6-270. Reserved. 

 
 

Sec. 6-250. Applicability; definition. 

The provisions of this article shall apply to the development, construction, and occupancy of a multi-
family development. "Multi-family" shall mean all structures designed to contain three (3) or more 
complete separate living facilities for single-family occupancy.  

(Ord. No. 2007-25, § 1, 6-26-07)  

Sec. 6-251. Density and size, access and separation between multi-family dwelling 
buildings. 

(a) Each multi-family dwelling building shall be limited to not more than seven thousand (7,000) square 
feet per floor. Multi-family dwelling buildings shall be limited to two (2) floors, and shall not exceed 
thirty (30) feet in height above finished grade. Each building shall be separate and separated by 
distances as stated in subsection (c) of this section.  

(b) Access must be provided around the entire perimeter of all multi-family development for emergency 
vehicles, including fire trucks, police cars, ambulances and garbage trucks. This access area must 
be paved and have a width of at least sixteen (16) feet. Multi-family developments with less than ten 
(10) multi-family dwelling units are exempt from this requirement. Multi-family developments may not 
be developed in stages or phases to circumvent this requirement.  

(c) Each building within a multi-family dwelling development shall be separated from other buildings by 
not less than thirty (30) feet. Enclosed courtyards shall not be less than forty (40) feet in depth, width, 
or length.  



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 6 ‐ BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE VIII. MULTI‐FAMILY DEVELOPMENTS 

  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 2 

(d) Building lines. The following minimum building lines shall be required for lots or tracts containing 
multi-family dwelling buildings, measured from the applicable property line; provided, however, if the 
lot is encumbered with a street right-of-way, such building line shall be measured from the boundary 
line of such street right-of-way:  

(1) Front yard. The front yard building line shall not be less than thirty-five (35) feet.  

(2) Side yard, interior. The interior side yard building line shall be not less than (a) thirty (30) feet if 
a one-story multi-family dwelling building (not to exceed fifteen (15) feet in height) is to be 
constructed; or (b) fifty (50) feet if a two-story multi-family dwelling building (not to exceed thirty 
(30) feet in height) is to be constructed.  

(3) Side yard, street. The side building line adjacent to a street shall be not less than thirty (30) feet, 
except that where the side yard is adjacent to a collector street or major thoroughfare such 
building line shall be not less than thirty-five (35) feet.  

(4) Rear yard; interior; alleyways. The rear building line shall be not less than (a) thirty (30) feet if a 
one-story multi-family dwelling building (not to exceed fifteen (15) feet in height) is to be 
constructed; or (b) fifty (50) feet if a two-story multi-family dwelling building (not to exceed thirty 
(30) feet in height) is to be constructed. Provided, however, where the rear property line abuts 
an alleyway, there shall be a minimum of thirty (30) feet between the buildings abutting said 
alleyway.  

(5) Rear yard, major street. A rear building line adjacent to a collector street or a major 
thoroughfare shall be not less than thirty (30) feet.  

(e) No multi-family dwelling development shall contain more than fourteen (14) units per net platted 
acre. The net platted acreage shall be the total platted acreage of the development, less any 
acreage occupied by lakes or ponds, irrigation canals or drainage canals. For a development with 
one-story multi-family dwelling buildings the density shall not exceed seven (7) dwelling units per net 
platted acre. For a development with two-story or a combination of one- and two-story multi-family 
dwelling buildings the density shall not exceed fourteen (14) dwelling units per net platted acre. At no 
time shall any acre contain more than fourteen (14) dwelling units.  

(f) The total number of units within a multi-family development shall not exceed two hundred (200). 
Multi-family developments may not be developed in stages or phases to circumvent this requirement.  

(Ord. No. 2007-25, § 1, 6-26-07)  

Sec. 6-252. Masonry construction. 

At a minimum, thirty (30) percent of the exterior walls of a multi-family dwelling development shall be 
constructed of masonry materials and shall contain an appropriate moisture barrier in accordance with 
Article II of Chapter 6 hereof.  

(Ord. No. 2007-25, § 1, 6-26-07)  

Sec. 6-253. Screening. 

The following screening requirements shall apply to multi-family dwelling developments:  

(1) All refuse containers shall be screened; 

(2) An eight-foot tall decorative masonry wall shall be constructed on the sides and rear of any 
multi-family dwelling development; and  



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 6 ‐ BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE VIII. MULTI‐FAMILY DEVELOPMENTS 

  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 3 

(3) All walls shall be constructed of a solid masonry material of brick, decorative block or similar 
material. Similar material shall not include smooth face concrete masonry blocks or units. 
Masonry walls shall be erected on a concrete foundation of adequate strength and shall be not 
less than four (4) inches wider than the wall to be erected.  

(Ord. No. 2007-25, § 1, 6-26-07)  

Sec. 6-254. Minimum off-street parking requirements. 

(a) The minimum requirements for off-street parking for multi-family dwelling developments are set forth 
in Section 6-418  

(b) A parking space shall be constructed of concrete cement and be the minimum size required by 
Section 6-418. No on-street parking shall be permitted. All parking areas shall be separated from 
walkways, sidewalks, streets, or alleys by a wall, fence, curbing, or other protection device. Parking 
will be so arranged as to prevent backing out onto any public street.  

(Ord. No. 2007-25, § 1, 6-26-07)  

Sec. 6-255. Special protective requirements. 

(a) All multi-family dwelling buildings shall be constructed using one-hour fire-resistive materials in all 
walls, floors, ceilings, and attic separations, and shall contain a fire sprinkler system on all floors.  

(b) The use of wood shingle roofing and cedar shake siding materials is prohibited. 

(Ord. No. 2007-25, § 1, 6-26-07)  

Sec. 6-256. Open green space requirements. 

(a) A minimum of thirty (30) percent of the net platted area shall be open green space. "Open green 
space" is defined as, and limited to, common areas of open green space with landscaping or open 
community recreational areas. Open green space does not include any areas specifically designated 
or used as building sites for multi-family units, buildings sites for utility or storage buildings, parking 
lots, garages, streets, or driveways within a multi-family development. The actual surface areas of 
open green space, such as common area lawns and landscaping, and community recreational 
areas, such as playgrounds, community swimming pools and surrounding paved deck area, 
community tennis courts, and other open common recreation areas, shall be considered in 
calculating the minimum requirement for open green space. Recreational facilities located within 
enclosed buildings shall not be considered open green space. Park land provided to satisfy the 
requirements set forth in Chapter 25, Subdivisions, Article IV, Park Land Public Sites and Open 
Spaces, may be included in satisfaction of the minimum required area of open green space required 
by this section, with the exception that detention basins (dry-bottom) shall not be used to satisfy 
open green space requirements.  

(b) All multi-family dwelling developments shall provide at least three (3) of the following amenity items:  

(1) Tennis courts (minimum two (2)); 

(2) Swimming pool; 

(3) Recreation/community center or room; 

(4) Basketball court (full court); 

(5) Fitness center; or 



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 6 ‐ BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE VIII. MULTI‐FAMILY DEVELOPMENTS 

  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 4 

(6) Playground area. 

A basketball court or tennis court shall not occupy the same space to be counted as separate 
amenities.  

(Ord. No. 2007-25, § 1, 6-26-07)  

Sec. 6-257. Access. 

(a) Multi-family dwelling developments, including apartment and condominium developments, shall have 
an adequate number of access points to provide for an orderly and safe movement of vehicular 
traffic. The minimum number of points of access from said developments shall be provided in 
accordance with Section 25-61 of this Code.  

(b) All multi-family dwelling units (buildings) and all common/recreational areas shall have direct access 
to a driveway or access street, which shall be constructed in accordance with the city's minimum 
design construction standards for a private street.  

(Ord. No. 2007-25, § 1, 6-26-07)  

Sec. 6-258. Lighting. 

Each multi-family dwelling development shall include lighting for all recreational areas, driveways, 
access streets, entrances, and exits.  

(Ord. No. 2007-25, § 1, 6-26-07)  

Sec. 6-259. Site plan. 

At the time a preliminary plat application is submitted, a preliminary site plan of the multi-family 
development shall be submitted for review and approval of the planning and zoning commission. At the 
time a final plat application is submitted, a final site plan shall be submitted for review and approval by the 
planning and zoning commission and the city council. Any site plan of the multi-family development 
submitted in conjunction with an application for a building permit shall be in accordance with the final site 
plan approved by the city council. This requirement to provide a site plan shall be cumulative of, and in 
addition to, such other regulations and requirements as may be imposed under this Code.  

(Ord. No. 2007-25, § 1, 6-26-07)  

Sec. 6-260. Minimum square footage. 

Each dwelling unit within a multi-family development shall meet the following minimum square 
footage requirements:  

(1) Each one-bedroom unit shall have a minimum of area of six hundred (600) square feet; 

(2) Each two-bedroom unit shall have a minimum area of nine hundred (900) square feet; 

(3) Each three-bedroom unit shall have a minimum area of one thousand two hundred (1,200) 
square feet; and  

(4) No four-bedroom units shall be permitted. 

(Ord. No. 2007-25, § 1, 6-26-07)  



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 6 ‐ BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE VIII. MULTI‐FAMILY DEVELOPMENTS 

  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 5 

Sec. 6-261. Penalty. 

Any person who shall violate any provision of this article shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor 
and, upon conviction, shall be subject to the penalty provided in Section 1-13 of this Code.  

(Ord. No. 2007-25, § 1, 6-26-07)  

Sec. 6-262. Exceptions. 

The following developments shall be subject to the standard regulations set forth in this article, 
except as otherwise hereinafter provided:  

(1) Federally funded (example: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, commonly 
referenced as "HUD") projects that comply with HUD Section 811 regulations for such projects, 
which is restricted to housing for persons with physical disabilities, developmental disabilities, or 
chronic mental illness, shall be subject to the following requirements:  

a. Applicability. Non-profit organizations: Entity must provide proof of non-profit status and 
federally funded status concurrently with the submittal of a site plan for consideration by 
the planning commission;  

b. Density: Maximum density of seven (7) units per net platted acre;  

c. Number of units: Maximum number of fifteen (15) units within a development;  

d. Minimum development area: Two (2) acres;  

e. Parking: Minimum of two (2) spaces per unit;  

f. Building separation: Minimum building separation of eighteen (18) feet;  

g. Property line fencing: A fence, consisting of chain link, wrought iron, or wood panels, shall 
be required along the perimeter property lines. An opaque fence shall be required along 
any property line that is adjacent to a residential use, or property platted for residential use, 
at the time of development of the multi-family use;  

h. Amenities: A minimum of one (1) of the following amenities shall be provided:  

1. Tennis courts. 

2. Swimming pool. 

3. Recreation/community center or room. 

4. Basketball court. 

5. Fitness center. 

6. Playground area. 

7. Open green space/play area. 

8. Gazebo. 

i. Size of units: Units shall be a minimum of five hundred (500) square feet;  

j. Maximum number of residents per unit: Three (3), with one (1) of those residents being at 
least eighteen (18) years of age or older; and  

k. Site plans: All site plans shall be submitted to the planning commission for a 
recommendation, and the city council for final approval.  



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 6 ‐ BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE VIII. MULTI‐FAMILY DEVELOPMENTS 

  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 6 

(Ord. No. 2010-02, § 1, 1-19-10)  

Secs. 6-263—6-270. Reserved. 

 

 

FOOTNOTE(S): 

 

--- (11) ---  

Editor's note— Ord. No. 2007-25, § 1, adopted June 26, 2007, repealed former Art. VIII, §§ 6-250—6-
258 and enacted provision designated as a new Art. VIII, §§ 6-250—6-261, to read as herein set out. 
Prior to inclusion of said ordinance, Art. VIII pertained to similar subject matter. See also the Code 
Comparative Table. (Back) 

Cross reference— Planning and development, § 2-86 et seq.; fire prevention and protection, Ch. 11; 
flood prevention and protection, Ch. 12; health, sanitation and nuisances, Ch. 14; streets, sidewalks and 
other public places, Ch. 24; subdivisions, Ch. 25; traffic and vehicles, Ch. 28; utilities, Ch. 29. (Back) 



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 6 ‐ BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE XVI. PARKING LOT STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 1 

ARTICLE XVI. PARKING LOT STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS [18]  
Sec. 6-416. Off-street parking regulations. 

Sec. 6-417. Off-street parking landscaping (twenty-five (25) spaces or more). 

Sec. 6-418. Schedule of parking regulations. 

Sec. 6-419. Special exceptions for parking and landscaping for commercial uses with frontage on Avenue 
H, Avenue I, and State Highway 36 only. 

Sec. 6-420. Outdoor displays of motor vehicles; paving requirements. 

Secs. 6-421—6-424. Reserved. 

 
 

Sec. 6-416. Off-street parking regulations. 

It is the intent of this section to ensure that adequate off-street parking is provided.  

(1) Required off-street parking spaces should be on the same lot, tract, parcel, or premises as the 
use being served.  

(2) Any existing use that is enlarged, structurally altered, or remodeled to the extent of increasing or 
changing the use by more than fifty (50) percent as it existed at the effective date of this article 
shall be accompanied by off-street parking for the entire building, or use in accordance with the 
required off-street parking regulations set forth in the section 6-418, schedule of parking 
regulations. Exemption may be permitted for a business that existed prior to the passage of this 
ordinance and requires less than twenty-five (25) spaces, and is rebuilt due to fire, storm, or 
other acts of God.  

(3) Existing parking spaces may not be used to satisfy additional off-street parking requirements 
unless the existing spaces proposed for use in meeting the requirements of the associated use 
exceed the number of spaces required for the building or use for which the existing spaces are 
associated. All parking associated with a building or use from which the spaces are drawn must 
meet all requirements of this article.  

(4) Off-street parking areas shall provide parking spaces with a minimum stall width of nine (9) feet 
(as measured from centerline to centerline) and a minimum length of twenty (20) feet. Off-street 
parking spaces shall be clearly marked with striping to indicate the location of the individual 
spaces.  

(5) All parking and paving areas shall meet the following setbacks: 

a. Parking and paving areas shall be setback a minimum of ten (10) feet from any property 
line that abuts a street right-of-way or an access easement as defined in Article 1, of 
Chapter 25, Subdivisions, Section 25-1  

b. Parking and paving areas shall be setback a minimum of five (5) feet from any side 
property line. For corner lots, parking and paving areas shall provide the minimum five (5) 
foot setback on both interior side yards, regardless of whether one (1) yard is considered a 
rear yard.  

c. There shall be no parking or paving setback on the rear of a lot. Parking spaces abutting 
an adjoining property line in the rear shall be provided with wheel guards or bumper guards 
located so that no part of a normally parking vehicle shall extend beyond the property line.  



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 6 ‐ BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE XVI. PARKING LOT STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 2 

d. Parking and paving areas shall be setback a minimum of five (5) feet from any alley. 

e. For interior side property lines in commercial developments with shared parking, no 
setback from the interior property lines are required.  

f. Single family residential parking shall be exempt from these setback requirements. 

g. Nonconforming parking and paving areas:  

i. Parking and paving areas which are in existence on the effective date of this 
ordinance, and which are nonconforming as it relates to the provisions of subsection 
6-416(5), may be repaired or renovated provided that repairs or renovations do not 
exceed fifty (50) percent of the replacement cost of the parking or paving area as 
determined by two (2) or more independent estimates from licensed contractors.  

ii. Repairs or renovations exceeding fifty (50) percent of the replacement cost of a 
nonconforming parking or paving area must result in conformance with subsection 6-
416(5).  

(6) Approval of the parking area layout and design of all off-street parking areas shall be by the 
planning director or such designee. The planning director or such designee shall determine that 
spaces provided are useable and that the circulation pattern of the area is adequate.  

(7) All off-street parking areas shall be paved with a permanent all-weather surface of asphalt 
concrete or Portland cement concrete approved by the planning director.  

(8) All off-street parking areas within commercial or multi-family projects shall be provided with 
exterior lighting, which meets the following minimum standards:  

a. Proper illumination shall be provided for safety, which at a minimum, shall be the 
equivalent of one-foot candle average of illumination throughout the parking area. In 
commercial parking lots, lights should be operable at a minimum of one (1) hour before the 
business is open to a period at least one (1) hour after the business has closed.  

b. All lighting shall be on a time clock or photo sensor system. 

c. All lighting shall be designed to confine direct rays to the premises. No spill over beyond 
the property line shall be permitted, except onto public thoroughfares provided, however, 
that such light shall not cause hazard to motorists.  

(9) Access to parking areas for commercial or multi-family projects shall be provided as follows:  

a. Two-way access driveways shall have a width of no less than twenty (20) feet nor greater 
than forty-four (44) feet. In cases where one-way access drives are approved, a minimum 
width of twelve (12) feet is required.  

b. The parking area shall be designed so that a vehicle within the parking area will not have 
to enter a public street to move from one (1) location to any other location within the 
parking area. (Businesses requiring twenty-five (25) spaces or less are exempt from this 
provision.)  

c. Under no circumstances will spaces be approved that require a vehicle to back into a 
public right-of-way. (Businesses requiring twenty-five (25) spaces or less are exempt from 
this provision.)  

d. This section relating to access for commercial or multi-family projects shall not be 
applicable for single-family residential parking requirements.  

(10) Access to parking area for single-family residential units shall be provided as follows: 



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 6 ‐ BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE XVI. PARKING LOT STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 3 

a. The driveway shall be a minimum nine (9) feet wide and connect to all parking areas 
including garage.  

b. The driveway can permit a vehicle to safely back into a public right-of-way. 

c. The access drive may be of like material of the city street, but in no case less than an 
asphalt material. It does not have to match the parking space material.  

d. The design criteria shall be approved by the building official and be properly tied into the 
city street.  

(11) The Downtown Area, as defined in this chapter, shall be exempt from the parking regulations 
set forth in this article.  

(Ord. No. 2011-24, § 1, 12-20-11; Ord. No. 2011-34, § 1, 12-20-11; Ord. No. 2012-41, § 1, 11-20-
2012 )  

Sec. 6-417. Off-street parking landscaping (twenty-five (25) spaces or more). 

(a) All areas, except the downtown area, that are used for parking shall conform to the minimum 
landscaping requirements of this section. Parking lots shall have open landscaped areas that are 
equal to but not less than ten (10) percent of the parking areas and drives in the parking area. The 
required area may be used as island, perimeter landscaping, or in any combination. A minimum of 
fifty (50) percent of the required landscaped area must be used as islands.  

(b) Landscaping in the right-of-way shall be permitted subject to the approval of the planning director. 
Credit for up to fifty (50) percent of the minimum landscaping area requirement shall be allowed for 
landscaping of the street right-of-way.  

(c) Off-street parking areas (including loading docks, access roads and drives) that are adjacent to an 
area used for residential purposes may require screening by means of a six-foot wall or opaque 
fence, which shall be erected and maintained along the property line to provide visual screening. It 
shall be necessary to show all planting areas drawn to scale and all plants and trees within shall be 
clearly located and labeled on-site plans for development regulated by this article.  

(d) Landscaping areas shall be protected from vehicular encroachment by curbs or wheel stops.  

(e) Landscaping shall consist of a combination of such materials as grasses, groundcover, shrubs, 
vines, hedges, trees, or other such materials. Grasses and groundcover alone shall not constitute 
adequate landscaping.  

(f) Visibility at intersections. On a corner lot, no structure shall be erected or constructed, and no 
vegetation shall be planted and allowed to grow, in such a manner as to impede vision between a 
height of two (2) feet and eight (8) feet above the centerline grades of the intersecting streets, in the 
triangular area bounded by the intersecting street lines and a line joining points along said street 
lines twenty (20) feet from the point of their intersection.  

(Ord. No. 2011-24, § 1, 12-20-11; Ord. No. 2011-34, § 1, 12-20-11)  

Sec. 6-418. Schedule of parking regulations. 

Computing parking space requirements:  

(1) Where a fraction of an off-street parking space greater than or equal to one-half (0.5) is required 
pursuant to the table below, a full parking space shall be provided.  



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 6 ‐ BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE XVI. PARKING LOT STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 4 

(2) For uses not mentioned in the table below or for which the category of use is uncertain, the 
planning director shall determine the most appropriate equivalent from the subsequent table. An 
applicant unsatisfied with the planning director's decision may make an appeal to the planning 
and zoning commission.  

* GLA is the "gross leasable floor area".  

Use  Unit  Minimum Number 
Spaces: Unit 

Single‐family residential  Dwelling unit  2:1 dwelling unit 

Townhouse residential  Dwelling unit  2.5:1 dwelling unit 

Duplex residential  Duplex  4 covered spaces per duplex 

General office (includes banks and 
savings and loans)  

1,000 square feet 
of GLA* 

5:1000 square feet 

General retail (under 400,000)  1,000 square feet 
of GLA*  

5:1000 square feet 

General retail (400,000 and over)  1,000 square feet 
of GLA*  

5:1000 square feet 

Fast‐food eating (with or without 
drive‐through, without table service) 

1,000 square feet 
of GLA* 

10:1,000 square feet 

Restaurants and cafeterias (sit down 
eating with table service, without bar) 

1,000 square feet 
of GLA* 

12:1,000 square feet 

Restaurants and cafeterias (sit down 
eating with table service, with bar) 

1,000 square feet 
of GLA* 

15:1,000 square feet 

Bars, nightclubs and taverns  1,000 square feet 
of GLA* 

20:1,000 square feet 

Churches, cinemas, meeting rooms, 
and places of public assembly (with 
fixed seating) 

Seats   1:4 seats 



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 6 ‐ BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE XVI. PARKING LOT STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 5 

Places of public assembly (without 
fixed seating) 

Areas of assembly 1:45 square feet 

Places of assembly for elementary 
age children (without fixed seating) 

Areas of assembly 1:650 square feet 

Hospitals (acute care)  Beds  1:1 bed 

Hospitals, nursing homes, assisted 
living (chronic care) 

Beds  1:3 beds 

Light manufacturing  1,000 square feet 
of GLA* 

2:1,000 square feet 

Wholesaling, warehousing, and 
distribution 

1,500 square feet 
of inside storage 
area 

1:1,500 square feet 

Bowling alley  Lanes  5:1 lane 

Funeral home  Seats  1:3 seats 

Medical/dental clinic  1,000 square feet 
of GLA* 

6:1,000 square feet 

Hotel/motel  Rooms  1:1 room 

Multifamily dwelling  1 Bedroom 
2 Bedroom 
3 Bedroom 

4 spaces: 1 bedroom dwelling 
5 spaces: 2 bedroom dwelling 
6 spaces: 3 bedroom dwelling 
30% of the required spaces shall be covered. 
(At a minimum, 10% of the total spaces shall 
be designated for guest parking)  

Auto repair, painting, or body repair  1,000 square feet 
of GLA*  

3:1,000 square feet of office area + 4 spaces 
per each bay, or one space per 600 square 
feet of other gross floor area  



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 6 ‐ BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE XVI. PARKING LOT STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 6 

Auto wash  Use  10 minimum  

Auto part sales  1,000 square feet 
of GLA* 

3:1,000 square feet of office area + 4 spaces 
per each bay, or one space per 600 square 
feet of other gross floor area  

Auto service station  Use  2 spaces per day + 2 stacking spaces per 
pump 

Automobile/vehicle sales: 

  For showroom/office  1,000 square feet 
of GLA*  

4:1,000 square feet 

  For outside lot  800 square feet of 
lot area 

1:800 square feet 

  Minimum, if greater than total for 
above 

Total site  8 spaces  

Self‐storage/Mini‐warehouse  12,000 square 
feet of GLA* 

1:12,000 square feet 

  

(Ord. No. 2011-24, § 1, 12-20-11; Ord. No. 2011-34, § 1, 12-20-11)  

Sec. 6-419. Special exceptions for parking and landscaping for commercial uses with 
frontage on Avenue H, Avenue I, and State Highway 36 only. 

(a) Upon written request of the property owner, the city council may grant a special exception to the 
provisions of this article, including the parking and paving setbacks required by subsection 6-416 (5), 
limited to and in accordance with the items referenced in this section.  

(b) The purpose of a special exception shall be to authorize a modification of standards applicable to 
development within the city, which is consistent with the overall intent of the Code, but that requires 
additional review to determine whether the development with the modifications is compatible with 
adjoining properties and the character of the neighborhood in which the development is proposed.  

(c) An application for a special exception shall be filed only for parking and landscaping provisions 
contained within this article of the Code.  



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 6 ‐ BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE XVI. PARKING LOT STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 7 

(d) In granting a special exception under this article, the city council may impose such criteria and 
conditions as necessary to bring the property into further compliance with this article and to protect 
adjacent property owners.  

(e) Special exceptions shall be limited to the following: 

(1) The property to which a special exception applies shall be no larger than one (1) acre in size.  

(2) The property to which a special exception applies shall be a property in which an improvement 
is upon, and not be a stand-alone, vacant property, in which no building currently exists. A 
vacant property adjacent to a developed property, in which the vacant tract and the developed 
tract are replatted into one (1) lot, shall be permitted.  

(3) The special exception may allow for the reduction of parking requirements in an amount not 
exceeding twenty-five (25) percent of the parking required for that use under this article.  

(f) Application requirements. An application for a special exception shall be accompanied by the 
following:  

(1) Completed application, as provided by the planning department. 

(2) A statement detailing the specifics of the site, including the size of the site, the size of any 
buildings to be utilized, the parking spaces proposed, and any other information deemed 
appropriate by the planning director.  

(3) A site plan of the subject property. 

(4) A landscape plan showing as much conformance to the landscaping requirements as the site 
can accommodate.  

(g) Application processing.  

(1) The planning commission shall consider an application for a special exception and make a 
recommendation to the city council.  

(2) The planning department shall cause notice to be sent by regular mail before the tenth day 
before the date in which the special exception is considered by the city council, to each owner 
of real property located within two hundred (200) feet of the exterior boundary of the property in 
question.  

(3) The planning department shall cause notice to be published in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the city before the tenth day before the date in which the special exception is 
considered by the city council.  

(4) The city council shall hold a public hearing and receive public comments regarding the special 
exception.  

(Ord. No. 2011-24, § 1, 12-20-11; Ord. No. 2012-41, § 1, 11-20-12 )  

Sec. 6-420. Outdoor displays of motor vehicles; paving requirements. 

(a) Definitions.  

Motor vehicle shall mean a self-propelled vehicle required to be registered under the Texas 
Transportation Code, and is designed for use on a public roadway, regardless if the motor vehicle is 
operable, inoperable or dismantled.  

Outdoor display area(s) shall mean an area for the outdoor display of motor vehicles that are 
available for rent, sale, lease or storage.  



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 6 ‐ BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE XVI. PARKING LOT STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 8 

Residential property means an establishment serving a single-family or household.  

(b) Outdoor display areas, paving requirements. All outdoor display areas shall be paved with a 
permanent all-weather surface of asphalt concrete or Portland cement concrete approved by the 
planning director.  

(1) Outdoor display of motor vehicles shall not be displayed on areas that are designated for off-
street parking or are included in the computation for designated off-street parking (unless the 
off-street parking spaces available exceed the number of spaces required for off-street parking), 
areas designated for landscaping, grass, dirt, gravel or other unimproved surfaces.  

(2) Display of one (1) motor vehicle for sale on residential property shall not be considered an 
outdoor display area for purposes of this section.  

(3) Outdoor display areas of motor vehicles that require proper screening pursuant to applicable 
city ordinances shall comply with screening requirements in addition to paving.  

(4) Outdoor display areas shall not encroach into the sight visibility triangle. 

(c) Outdoor display areas in existence at time of enactment of this article. A person owning, renting, 
leasing, or operating an outdoor display area on the date of enactment of this article shall have a 
period of six (6) months from the date of enactment of this article in which to comply with the paving 
requirements set forth in subsection 6-417(b) of this article. This section shall only apply to outdoor 
display area(s) as it existed on the date of enactment of this article. Should an existing outdoor 
display area(s) be enlarged or expanded prior to the end of the six-month period, the entire outdoor 
display area(s) shall be required, at time of enlargement or expansion, to comply with subsection 6-
417(b).  

(Ord. No. 2011-34, § 1, 12-20-11)  

Secs. 6-421—6-424. Reserved. 

 

 

FOOTNOTE(S): 

 

--- (18) ---  

Editor's note— Ord. No. 2011-24, § 1, adopted Dec. 20, 2011, amended art. XVI, in its entirety to read 
as herein set out. Former art. XVI, §§ 6-416—6-418, pertained to similar subject matter, and derived from: 
Ord. No. 2000-02, § 1, adopted Mar. 21, 2000; Ord. No. 2000-56, § 1, adopted Dec. 05, 2000; Ord. No. 
2003-14, § 1, adopted Apr. 15, 2003; Ord. No. 2007-25, § 2, adopted June 26, 2007; Ord. No. 2008-24, 
§§ 3, 4, adopted Aug. 5, 2008; Ord. No. 2008-25, § 1, adopted Aug. 19, 2008; Ord. No. 2008-30, §§ 1, 2, 
adopted Dec. 16, 2008; Ord. No. 2008-31, § 1, adopted Dec. 16, 2008; and Ord. No. 2009-27, §§ 1, 2, 
adopted Aug. 18, 2009. (Back) 

Editor's note— Ord. No. 2000-02, § 1, adopted Mar. 21, 2000, set out provisions intended for use as §§ 
6-700—6-702. For purposes of classification, and at the editor's discretion, these provisions have been 
included as §§ 6-416—6-418. (Back) 



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 6 ‐ BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE XIX. RENTAL REGISTRATION AND INSPECTION 

  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 1 

ARTICLE XIX. RENTAL REGISTRATION AND INSPECTION [20]  
Sec. 6-461. Definitions. 

Sec. 6-462. Rental registration application required. 

Sec. 6-463. Issuance of permit. 

Sec. 6-464. Inspections. 

Sec. 6-465. Prohibitions. 

Sec. 6-466. Appeals. 

Secs. 6-467—6-469. Reserved. 

 
 

Sec. 6-461. Definitions. 

[The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:]  

Rental unit is defined as a single-family dwelling unit, a duplex dwelling unit, a town home dwelling 
unit, a condominium dwelling unit, a manufactured home dwelling unit, or an individual multifamily 
dwelling unit, or any portion thereof that is rented or offered for rent as a residence.  

Rental inspection is defined as an inspection of a rental unit to determine compliance with all 
applicable standards set forth in the city's building, housing, property maintenance, electrical, plumbing, 
health, and zoning codes, and any other applicable state or local law.  

(Ord. No. 2008-08, § 2, 5-6-08)  

Sec. 6-462. Rental registration application required. 

(a) The owner of each rental unit within the city, as of July 1, 2008, shall register such rental unit with the 
city fire marshal, or his designee, on or before October 1, 2008, and thereafter, shall renew 
registration annually. The annual renewal date for each rental unit shall be established at the time of 
issuance of the initial rental permit and shall be set forth therein.  

(b) The owner of each rental unit within the city, acquired after July 1, 2008, shall make application for 
registration within sixty (60) days after acquiring ownership of such rental unit.  

(c) The owner of each rental unit within the city shall be required to annually renew registration for each 
rental unit in accordance with the annual renewal date set forth in the initial rental permit.  

(d) Application for rental registration shall be made upon a form provided by the city for such purpose, 
and shall include, at a minimum, the following information:  

(1) Street address of the rental unit, or in the case of multifamily dwelling complexes, of the 
complex;  

(2) Owner's name; 

(3) The number of bedrooms contained therein; 



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 6 ‐ BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE XIX. RENTAL REGISTRATION AND INSPECTION 

  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 2 

(4) If owner is a person, mailing address, physical address, work telephone number, home 
telephone number;  

(5) If owner is a partnership, the name of all partners, the principal business address, the tax ID 
number, and telephone number of each partner;  

(6) If owner is a corporation, the state of incorporation, the name and address of the registered 
agent, the names of all officers, and the contact information of any local office of such 
corporation.  

(7) Name and address of the property manager, if any; and 

(8) Signature of owner or owner's agent. 

(e) In the case of multifamily dwelling complexes, only one (1) application shall be required for the 
complex; however, the application shall set forth the total number of individual dwelling units within 
such complex.  

(f) The owner of each rental unit within the city shall make an application for registration prior to 
receiving a certificate of occupancy on new projects.  

(Ord. No. 2008-08, § 2, 5-6-08)  

Sec. 6-463. Issuance of permit. 

A rental registration annual permit shall be issued upon proper completion of a rental registration 
application.  

(Ord. No. 2008-08, § 2, 5-6-08)  

Sec. 6-464. Inspections. 

(a) Once the permit has been issued, a rental unit will be subject to periodic rental inspections 
conducted by the city. If the owner properly registers the property, and receives his permit, such 
owner shall annually certify to the fire marshal that the rental property meets the following minimum 
standards:  

(1) Operable plumbing fixtures, including running water, both hot and cold, in all fixtures, proper 
sewer connection to a sewer or septic system, and a properly vented water heater, with relief 
valves.  

(2) No exposed, live electrical wires. 

(3) Working electrical outlets. 

(4) Working light receptacles 

(5) All installed air conditioning and heating units must be in working order. 

(6) Owner has evaluated the integrity of structural components to ensure there are no health or 
safety issues, including holes in the walls or roof that would compromise the health or safety of 
the residents; rotten siding, roofing, flooring or eaves to the extent that it would cause a hazard; 
guard railings that are in danger of falling off, broken out windows or door panels, etc.  

(7) An operable smoke alarm. 

(8) The presence of a deadbolt and locking doors. 



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 6 ‐ BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE XIX. RENTAL REGISTRATION AND INSPECTION 

  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 3 

(b) If the owner of the rental unit certifies that, to the best of his knowledge, the rental unit meets the 
standards set forth above; the fire marshal will select a random sample of registered rental units to 
be inspected.  

(c) The fire marshal, or his designee, will inspect, on a random basis, registered units. Approximately 
ten (10) percent of registered units will be inspected each year, as well as any properly registered 
rental unit for which the city has received a complaint of a violation of one (1) of the provisions of this 
article or other codes or ordinances of the city, applicable to the rental unit.  

(d) There will be no charge for the initial inspection of the properly registered units, or for the initial 
inspection of any properly registered unit for which the city has received a complaint. If a discrepancy 
is found on the initial inspection, there will be no charge for the first re-inspection. All subsequent re-
inspections will be charged a fee of two hundred fifty dollars ($250.00).  

(e) Rental units that are not timely registered, as provided in section 6-462 hereof, shall be subject to an 
administrative fee of three hundred dollars ($300.00) if such registration occurs not more than thirty 
(30) days after the date such registration is required; an administrative fee of three hundred seventy-
five dollars ($375.00) if such registration occurs after the thirtieth day, but on or before the sixtieth 
day after the date such registration is required; and an administrative fee of four hundred fifty dollars 
($450.00) if the registration is more than sixty (60) days after the date such registration is required. 
Failure to timely register will require a mandatory inspection at a fee of five hundred dollars ($500.00) 
(which will include the initial inspection and one (1) re-inspection). Re-inspections required past the 
first re-inspection will have an inspection fee of two hundred fifty dollars ($250.00) per additional re-
inspection.  

(Ord. No. 2008-08, § 2, 5-6-08)  

Sec. 6-465. Prohibitions. 

(a) It shall be unlawful to falsify or omit any material information contained in the rental registration 
permit application.  

(b) It shall be unlawful to rent or lease a rental unit within the city, without a current and valid rental 
registration permit for such unit.  

(c) It shall be unlawful to fail to update any material information on the rental registration permit 
application upon renewal.  

(d) It shall be unlawful to fail to allow rental inspections to be done in accordance with this article.  

(e) The rental registration permit is not assignable or transferable. Upon sale or transfer of ownership of 
the rental unit, a new registration form and certification of the condition of the rental unit, will be 
required within sixty (60) days of such ownership change.  

(Ord. No. 2008-08, § 2, 5-6-08)  

Sec. 6-466. Appeals. 

An owner may appeal the denial of a rental registration permit, or may appeal the work required by 
the rental property inspector by filing a written request for a hearing with the city secretary, in person or by 
certified mail, return receipt requested, within twenty (20) calendar days following the date of denial of 
such permit, or requirement of work to be completed. If a request for a hearing is received, a hearing 
before a panel of the board of appeals shall be held within twenty (20) calendar days of the city's receipt 
of such request. The results of such hearing will be sent to the owner of the property by certified mail, 
return receipt requested, at the address provided on the application.  



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 6 ‐ BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE XIX. RENTAL REGISTRATION AND INSPECTION 

  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 4 

The board of appeals shall be appointed by city council and shall be made up of a minimum of ten 
(10) members, consisting of the following:  

(1) Four (4) members who are residents of the City of Rosenberg, and not involved in the rental or 
real estate industry;  

(2) Two (2) members who are residents of the city and are renters; and 

(3) Four (4) members who are representative of the rental industry, whether they are real estate 
agents who lease to renters or manage rental property, or owners of rental property.  

Appeals shall be heard by a panel of the board of appeals. Each panel shall consist of five (5) 
members: two (2) members of the panel shall be resident members and not involved in the rental 
industry, one (1) member of the panel shall be a resident and a renter, and two (2) members of the panel 
shall be involved in the rental industry, such as a realtor or rental property owner.  

If the appeals board panel renders a decision in favor of the work required by the rental property 
inspector, and the property owner wishes to seek further remedy, further appeal shall be through a court 
of competent jurisdiction.  

(Ord. No. 2008-08, § 2, 5-6-08)  

Secs. 6-467—6-469. Reserved. 

 

 

FOOTNOTE(S): 

 

--- (20) ---  

Editor's note— Ord. No. 2008-08, § 2, adopted May 6, 2008, amended the Code by adding provisions 
designated as a new Art. XVIII, §§ 6-435—6-440. Inasmuch as provisions already exist numbered as Art. 
XVIII, Ord. No. 2008-08 has been codified herein as a new Art. XIX, §§ 6-461—6-466, at the discretion of 
the editor. See also the Code Comparative Table. (Back) 



Estimated Population in Single‐ and Multi‐Family Residences – 2009‐2013 

 

   Population 
Year  Single‐Family  Multi‐Family  Total 
2009  23,162  6,799 29,961
2010  23,819  6,799 30,618
2011  24,890  6,799 31,689
2012  25,587  7,174 32,761
2013  26,658  7,174 33,832
 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION 
 
April 26, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

5 Special Election Regarding “One-Way Pairs” Project Discussion 
 
MOTION 
 

Review and discuss the City’s Special Election regarding the Texas Department of Transportation 
(TxDOT) “One-Way Pairs” Project, and take action as necessary to direct staff. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff has no recommendation for this item. 
 

MUD # City/ETJ ELECTION DISTRICT 
N/A City 1, 2, and 3 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

1. City Council Meeting Minutes – 12-16-13 
 

APPROVAL 

Submitted by:   

 
Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director of Community 
Development 

Reviewed by:   

      Executive Director of Community Development 

      City Engineer 

 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
This discussion item was requested at the March 26, 2014 Planning Commission Meeting.  The “One-Way 
Pairs” Project has recently generated a significant amount of discussion and public input.  City Council was 
presented with a petition in December 2013 calling for proposed legislation as follows: 
 

“That the City shall not donate to any person or entity, including TxDOT, the real property owned by the 
City, and located in the City between Avenue H and Avenue I, and Damon and Louise Streets, for the 
roadway project known as the “One-Way Pairs” Project.  The property may only be sold in the future for 
fair market value, as determined by independent appraisal.” 
 

A Special Election will be held on May 10, 2014, to vote on the petition language above. 
  
 
 

























PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION 
 
April 23, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

6 Staff Report of Current Activities and Requests for Future Agenda Items 
 
MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on the Staff Report of Current Activities and requests for future agenda items. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

N/A 
 

MUD # City/ETJ ELECTION DISTRICT 
N/A N/A N/A 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

1. First Quarter 2014 Residential Development Report 
 

APPROVAL 

Submitted by:   

 
Travis Tanner, AICP  
Executive Director of Community 
Development 

Reviewed by:   

     City Engineer  

 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Staff Report of Current Activities consists of projects that staff is currently working on as well as other 
updates that are relevant to the Planning Commission.  This item also allows the Planning Commission the 
opportunity to request that items be placed on future agendas. 
 
For this month’s report, a report on residential development activity during the first quarter of 2014 has been 
compiled and is attached.  The City and its Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) again experienced significant growth 
during the first three (3) months of 2014.  Following is an overview: 

• House Starts: 
o 183 new home starts; 76 in the City and 107 in the ETJ 
o 20 percent more house starts than this time last year 
o Summer Lakes/Summer Park (46), Bonbrook Plantation (43), and River Run at the Brazos 

(27) had the most house starts. 
• Lots Platted: 

o Plats for 230 new lots were submitted; 166 were in the ETJ and 64 were in the City. 
o Bonbrook Plantation had the most lots platted with 108, followed by the Reserve at Brazos 

Town Center (62) and Walnut Creek (58) 
o Of the 230 lots platted, 73 percent were 60-foot or greater lots. 
o The proportion of larger lots continues to climb as newer developments comply with City 

ordinances  
 
At the meeting, staff will also provide updates on the Comprehensive Plan and “Sign” Ordinance 
amendments, which are the main items the Planning Department is focused on at this time. 
  
 
 



First Quarter 2014 Single‐Family Residential Development 

House Starts: 

City Versus ETJ House Starts 
Jurisdiction  House Starts  Percent
City  76  41.5%
ETJ  107  58.5%
Total  183  100.0%
 

 

 

House Starts by MUD/Development 
Jurisdiction  MUD  Development  House Starts  Percent 

ETJ 

155  Bonbrook Plantation  43 23.5% 
158  River Run at the Brazos  27 14.8% 
162  Sunrise Meadow  21 11.5% 
152  Walnut Creek  16 8.7% 

City 

N/A  Bayou Crossing  10 5.5% 
148  Cottonwood  10 5.5% 
167  The Reserve at Brazos Town Center  9 4.9% 
144  Summer Lakes/Park  46 25.1% 
N/A  Other  1 0.5% 

All  All  All  183 100.0% 





Total House Starts 
Timeframe  2013  2014 
January  31  37 
February  70  51 
March  50  95 
First Quarter  151  183 
 

 

   



Lots Platted: 

Platting by MUD/Development 
Jurisdiction  MUD  Development  Lots Percent
ETJ  155  Bonbrook Plantation  108 47.0%
City  167  The Reserve at Brazos Town Center  62 27.0%
ETJ  152  Walnut Creek  58 25.2%
City  N/A  Other  2 0.9%
All  All  All  230 100.0%
 

 

   



 

Platting by Lot Width 
Lot Width  Lots  Percent 
<60'  62  27.0% 
60'+  168  73.0% 
All  230  100.0% 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 7 
 

Announcements. 
 



 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 8 
 

Adjournment. 
 


	Planning Commission Meeting Agenda - 04-23-14
	1 - Minutes
	Planning Commission Meeting Minutes - 03-26-14

	2 - Final Plat of Business Park Drive and Innovation Court Street Dedication
	Final Plat of Business Park Drive and Innovation Court Street Dedication
	Preliminary Plat of Business Park Drive and Park Court Street Dedication - 12-18-13
	Land Plan for Rosenberg Business Park - 06-26-13
	Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt - 12-18-13
	Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt - 06-26-13

	3 - Final Plat of Walsh Road Industrial Park
	Final Plat of Walsh Road Industrial Park
	Preliminary Plat of Walsh Road Industrial Park - 12-18-13
	Fifty-Nine South Industrial Park - 05-25-81
	Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt - 12-18-13

	4 - Rental Inspection Program Discussion
	Code of Ordinances Excerpt - Chapter 6, Article VIII - Multi-Family Developments
	Code of Ordinances Excerpt - Chapter 6, Article XVI - Parking Lot Standards and Specifications
	Code of Ordinances Excerpt - Chaprter 6, Article XIX - Rental Registration and Inspection
	Estimated Population in Single- and Multi-Family Residences - 2009-2013

	5 - Special Election Regarding One Way Pairs Project Discussion
	City Council Meeting Minutes - 12-16-13

	6 - Staff Report of Current Activities and Requests for Future Agenda Items
	First Quarter 2014 Residential Development Report

	7 - Announcements
	8 - Adjournment

